

SIXTY-FIFTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Monday, March 19, 1984

The Senate met at 11:00 a.m. and was called to order by the President.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Rev. Joseph Simonson.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Belanger	Dieterich	Kronebusch	Olson	Schmitz
Benson	Frederickson	Laidig	Pehler	Sieloff
Berg	Freeman	Langseth	Peterson, C.C.	Solon
Berglin	Hughes	Lantry	Peterson, D.C.	Spear
Bernhagen	Isackson	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Storm
Bertram	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Petty	Stumpf
Brataas	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkens	Pogemiller	Taylor
Chmielewski	Jude	Merriam	Purfeerst	Ulland
Dahl	Kamrath	Moe, D.M.	Ramstad	Waldorf
Davis	Knaak	Moe, R.D.	Reichgott	Wegscheid
DeCramer	Knutson	Nelson	Renneke	Willet
Diessner	Kroening	Novak	Samuelson	

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

MEMBERS EXCUSED

Mrs. Adkins, Messrs. Anderson, Dicklich, Frank, Lessard and Vega were excused from the Session of today.

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the adoption by the House of the following Senate Concurrent Resolution, herewith returned:

Senate Concurrent Resolution No. 19: A Senate concurrent resolution relating to adjournment for more than three days.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned March 15, 1984

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House Files, herewith transmitted: H.F. Nos. 1456, 1485 and 1491.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted March 15, 1984

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

H.F. No. 1456: A bill for an act relating to Otter Tail county; authorizing the board of county commissioners to sell certain real property.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

H.F. No. 1485: A bill for an act relating to towns; providing for the election and term of office for the town clerk and treasurer; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 367.03, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

H.F. No. 1491: A bill for an act relating to highway traffic regulations; authorizing an increase in driver improvement clinic fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 169.972, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Willet moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted, with the exception of the report on S.F. No. 1224 and reports pertaining to appointments. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1520: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; defining terms; increasing certain gross vehicle weight tax to comply with international registration plan; authorizing repair and servicing permit for commercial zone trucks; providing time limitation for applying for quarterly registration of farm trucks; reducing 2,000-pound limitation to three-fourths ton for motor vehicles in certain situations; increasing certain fees; clarifying display and use of drive-away, in-transit plates; clarifying requirement to submit forms to registrar of motor vehicles; prohibiting transfer of certain plates; providing for transfer of amateur radio and citizen band plates; prescribing uniform fee for issuance of duplicate plates except for exempt vehicles; increasing minimum tax requirements for qualification for installment payments and prescribing a fee; requiring a bond in the amount of tax to be paid in installments; increasing penalty fees for late installment payments; clarifying certain duties of deputy registrars relating to reports and deposits of taxes and fees; requiring payment of one month's registration tax before issuance of certificate of title; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 168.011, subdivisions 9, 13, 28, and 29; 168.013, subdivision 16; 168.018; 168.041, subdivision 6; 168.053, subdivision 1; 168.10, subdivisions 1a, 1b, 1c, and 1d; 168.101, subdivision 2; 168.12, subdivisions 1 and 2b; 168.29; 168.31, subdivision 4; 168.33, subdivision 2; 168A.08; and 169.01, subdivisions 10, 11, and 50; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 168.013, subdivision

1e; 168.021, subdivision 1; 168.12, subdivision 2; and 169.73.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, delete sections 3 and 4

Page 7, delete section 8

Page 21, line 2, delete the colon

Page 21, lines 4 to 10, delete the new language

Page 21, lines 16 to 22 and 35 and 36, reinstate the stricken language

Page 22, lines 1 and 2, reinstate the stricken language

Pages 25 and 26, delete section 26 and insert:

"Sec. 23. Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 169.974, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [LICENSE REQUIREMENTS.] No person shall operate a motorcycle on any street or highway unless he has a valid standard driver's license with a two-wheeled vehicle endorsement as provided by law. No such two-wheeled vehicle endorsement shall be issued unless the person applying therefor has in possession a valid two-wheeled vehicle instruction permit as provided herein, has passed a written examination and road test administered by the department of public safety for such endorsement, and, in the case of applicants under 18 years of age, shall present a certificate or other evidence of having successfully completed an approved two-wheeled vehicle driver's safety course in this or another state, in accordance with rules promulgated by the state board of education for courses offered through the public schools, or rules promulgated by the commissioner of public safety for courses offered by a private or commercial school or institute. The commissioner of public safety may waive the road test for any applicant if he determines that the applicant possesses a valid license to operate a two-wheeled vehicle issued by a jurisdiction that requires a comparable road test for license issuance. A two-wheeled vehicle instruction permit shall be issued to any person over 16 years of age, who is in possession of a valid driver's license, who is enrolled in an approved two-wheeled vehicle driver's safety course, and who has passed a written examination for such permit and has paid such fee as the commissioner of public safety shall prescribe. A two-wheeled vehicle instruction permit shall be effective for 45 days, and may be renewed under rules to be prescribed by the commissioner of public safety.

No person who is operating by virtue of a two-wheeled vehicle instruction permit shall:

(a) Carry any passengers on the streets and highways of this state on the motorcycle which he is operating;

(b) Drive the motorcycle at night time;

(c) Drive the motorcycle on any highway marked by the commissioner as an interstate highway pursuant to title 23 of the United States Code; or

(d) Drive the motorcycle without wearing protective headgear of a type

~~approved that complies with standards established by the commissioner of public safety.~~

Notwithstanding the provisions of this subdivision, the commissioner of public safety may, however, issue a special motorcycle permit, restricted or qualified in such manner as he shall deem proper, to any person demonstrating a need therefor and unable to qualify for a standard driver's license.

Sec. 24. Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 169.974, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [NEGLIGENCE; DAMAGES WITHOUT PROTECTIVE HEADGEAR.] In an action to recover damages for negligence resulting in any head injury to an operator or passenger of a motorcycle, evidence of whether or not the injured person was wearing protective headgear of a ~~type approved that complies with standards established by the commissioner of public safety~~ shall be admissible only with respect to the question of damages for head injuries. Damages for head injuries of any person who was not wearing protective headgear shall be reduced to the extent that those injuries could have been avoided by wearing protective headgear of a ~~type approved that complies with standards established by the commissioner of public safety~~. For the purposes of this subdivision "operator or passenger" means any operator or passenger regardless of whether that operator or passenger was required by law to wear protective headgear ~~approved that complies with standards established by the commissioner of public safety~~.

Sec. 25. [REPEALER.]

Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 169.672 and 169.755, are repealed."

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 7, delete everything after the semicolon

Page 1, delete line 8

Page 1, line 9, delete "certain situations;"

Page 1, line 18, delete everything after the semicolon

Page 1, line 19, delete "paid in installments;"

Page 1, line 24, after the semicolon, insert "requiring protective headgear to comply with standards established by the commissioner of public safety;"

Page 1, line 25, delete ", 13, 28, and 29" and insert "and 13"

Page 1, line 32, delete "168.021,"

Page 1, line 33, delete "subdivision 1;" and delete "and" and before the period insert "; and 169.974, subdivisions 2 and 6; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 169.672 and 169.755"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1224: A bill for an act relating to transportation; establishing a railroad passenger service study commission to study the feasibility and potential of expanded railroad passenger service within the state.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

“Section 1. [RAILROAD PASSENGER SERVICE STUDY.]

The commissioner of transportation shall study the feasibility and potential methods of expanding railroad passenger service in the state. The study must examine the following rail corridors:

- (1) *St. Paul to Willmar to Morris to Breckenridge to Moorhead;*
- (2) *Moorhead to Grand Forks to Winnipeg; and*
- (3) *St. Paul to Faribault to Albert Lea.*

The commissioner shall collect ridership data independent from AMTRAK data to analyze ridership and shall focus on local and intermediate stops. In analyzing the feasibility of expanding the railroad passenger service, the commissioner shall consider the following factors and any other factors deemed appropriate:

- (1) *minimum train speed, service frequency, and performance standards;*
- (2) *station locations;*
- (3) *availability of equipment;*
- (4) *ridership forecasts;*
- (5) *track upgrading estimates;*
- (6) *fuel consumption; and*
- (7) *estimated fare recovery in relation to total operating costs.*

The commissioner shall report to the house and senate transportation committees by February 1, 1985, on his findings and recommendations.

Sec. 2. [APPROPRIATION.]

The sum of \$..... is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of transportation for the purpose of conducting the study required by section 1.

Sec. 3. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

Sections 1 and 2 are effective the day following final enactment.”

Delete the title and insert:

“A bill for an act relating to transportation; directing the commissioner of transportation to study the feasibility and potential of expanded railroad passenger service; requiring a report to the legislature; appropriating money.”

And when so amended the bill do pass. Mrs. Lantry questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Purfeerst from the Committee on Transportation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1446: A bill for an act relating to education; defining school bus; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 169.01, subdivision 6; and 171.01, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

“Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 169.01, subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. [SCHOOL BUS.] “School bus” means ~~every a motor vehicle owned by a public or governmental agency and operated for the transportation of children to or from school or privately owned and operated for compensation for the transportation of children to or from school used to transport pupils to or from a school defined in section 120.10, or to or from school-related activities, by the school or a school district, or by someone under an agreement with the school or a school district. A school bus does not include a motor vehicle transporting children to or from school for which parents or guardians receive direct compensation from a school district, a motor coach operating under charter carrier authority, or a transit bus.~~

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 169.44, subdivision 1c, is amended to read:

Subd. 1c. [VIOLATION; PENALTY.] (1) A peace officer may arrest the driver of a motor vehicle if the peace officer has probable cause to believe that the driver has operated the vehicle in violation of subdivision 1 within the past ~~two~~ four hours.

(2) The owner or, in the case of a leased vehicle, the lessee of a motor vehicle, may be fined not to exceed \$100, if a motor vehicle owned or leased by the person is operated in violation of subdivision 1. The owner or lessee may not be so fined if the motor vehicle was stolen, or if conviction of another is had for a violation of subdivision 1. This subdivision does not apply to a lessor of a motor vehicle if the lessor keeps a record of the name and address of the lessee. This subdivision does not prohibit or limit the prosecution of a motor vehicle operator for violating subdivision 1. A violation of this clause does not constitute grounds for revocation or suspension of the owner’s driver’s license.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 169.44, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. [LOADING AND UNLOADING PASSENGERS; USE OF SIGNALS.] (a) Drivers of a vehicle outwardly equipped and identified as a school bus shall actuate the pre-warning flashing amber signals of the bus before stopping to load or unload a school child or children at least 300 feet when operating outside an incorporated municipality and at least 100 feet when operating within an incorporated municipality and, upon stopping for such purpose, such drivers shall extend the stop signal arm and actuate the flashing red signals and shall not retract the stop signal arm and extinguish the flashing red signals until loading or unloading is completed and persons

who must cross the street or highway are safely across.

(b) School bus drivers shall not actuate the pre-warning flashing amber signals or flashing red signals:

(1) in special school bus loading areas where the bus is entirely off the traveled portion of the road;

(2) in residence or business districts of cities except when directed by the local school administrator;

(3) when a school bus is being used on a highway for purposes other than the actual transportation of school children to or from school or a school approved activity, in which event the words "school bus" on the front and rear of the bus shall be removed or completely concealed; and

(4) at railroad grade crossings.

(c) Where school children must cross the road before boarding or after being discharged from the bus, the driver of a school bus or a school bus patrol may supervise such crossings making use of the standard school patrol flag or signal as approved and prescribed by the commissioner of public safety. When children are alighting from a school bus, ~~and not crossing the road;~~ the driver shall visually ascertain that alighting children shall be a safe distance from the bus before moving the bus.

(d) Vehicles not outwardly equipped and identified as school buses shall load or unload school children only from the right hand side of the vehicle, except on a one way street such vehicle shall load or unload school children only from the curb side of the vehicle.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 169.44, subdivision 8, is amended to read:

Subd. 8. [VEHICLES USED AS OTHER THAN SCHOOL BUSES.] A ~~vehicle bus~~ which is ~~no longer not~~ used as a school bus shall not be operated on a public street or highway unless it is painted a color ~~other~~ significantly different than that required by law for school buses, including for purposes of this subdivision, Minnesota school bus golden orange; and ~~all it may not be equipped with~~ school bus related equipment and printing ~~shall be removed from said vehicles~~. Violation of this subdivision is a misdemeanor.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 169.44, subdivision 15, is amended to read:

Subd. 15. [TYPE THREE SCHOOL BUS.] Type three school buses are restricted to passenger cars, station wagons, and vans with a maximum manufacturer's rated seating capacity of ten persons including the driver, *and a gross vehicle weight rating of 10,000 pounds or less. For purposes of this subdivision, a "gross vehicle weight rating" or "GVW rating" means the value specified by the manufacturer as the loaded weight of a single vehicle.*

A type three school bus shall not in any way be outwardly equipped and identified as a school bus, as defined in subdivision 1a.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 169.45, is amended to read:

169.45 [SCHOOL BUSES.]

The state board of education ~~shall have~~ has sole and exclusive authority to

adopt and enforce ~~regulations~~ *rules* not inconsistent with this chapter to govern the design, color, and operation of school buses used for the transportation of school children, when owned and operated by a school ~~district~~ or privately owned and operated under a contract with a school ~~district~~, and these ~~regulations shall~~ *rules must* be made a part of ~~any such that~~ contract by reference. Each school ~~district~~, its officers and employees, and each person employed under ~~such a~~ *the* contract is subject to these regulations.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 171.01, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 21. [SCHOOL BUS.] "School bus" means a motor vehicle used to transport pupils to or from a school defined in section 120.10, or to or from school-related activities; by the school or a school district or by someone under an agreement with the school or a school district. A school bus does not include a motor vehicle transporting children to or from school for which parents or guardians receive direct compensation from a school district, a motor coach operating under charter carrier authority, or a transit bus."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to public safety; traffic regulations; regulating school buses; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 169.01, subdivision 6; 169.44, subdivisions 1c, 2, 8, and 15; 169.45; and 171.01, by adding a subdivision."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Schmitz from the Committee on Local and Urban Government, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1585: A bill for an act relating to the legislature; establishing a legislative commission on metropolitan affairs and defining its powers and responsibilities; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 3.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. [3.866] [LEGISLATIVE COMMISSION ON METROPOLITAN AFFAIRS.]

Subdivision 1. [CREATION; PURPOSE.] There is created a legislative commission on metropolitan affairs to assist the legislature in studying and overseeing public and governmental policy and affairs in the metropolitan area defined in section 473.121. The primary object of the commission must be to review, examine, and recommend to the legislature appropriate state policies and laws relating to the purpose, structure, policy and general operation and practice of governmental institutions and programs in the metropolitan area and the proper relationship between these institutions and programs and statewide governmental institutions, policies, laws, and programs.

Subd. 2. [DUTIES.] The duties of the commission are to:

(1) review the plans, policies, studies, development programs, bonding

programs, annual work programs and budgets, legislative proposals, and other reports and work products of metropolitan agencies, boards, and commissions;

(2) oversee and report on the activities of metropolitan agencies, boards, and commissions as they relate to legislative mandate;

(3) study and make recommendations as it deems appropriate to assist the legislature in formulating policy and legislation affecting metropolitan affairs; and

(4) review and evaluate proposed legislation as it affects overall legislative policy for metropolitan government, and oversee and report on the effects of existing state laws concerning metropolitan affairs.

Subd. 3. [MEMBERSHIP; TERMS.] The commission consists of ten members, consisting of the chairperson of the senate local and urban government committee or his or her designee; the chairperson of the house local and urban affairs committee or his or her designee; four other members of the house of representatives appointed by the speaker of the house; and four other members of the senate appointed by the subcommittee on committees of the committee on rules and administration of the senate. Except for initial appointments to be made upon implementation of legislation herein, commission members shall be appointed at the commencement of the regular session of the legislature for two-year terms beginning on January 15 of each odd-numbered year. Initial appointments may be made before January 15, 1985. Terms for initial appointments shall expire January 14, 1987. Vacancies on the commission must be filled in the same manner as the original appointment.

Subd. 4. [OFFICERS.] The commission shall elect a chair, a vice-chair, and other officers it finds appropriate from among its members. The chair and vice-chair must alternate each year between a member of the senate and a member of the house. The chair and vice-chair may not be members of the same house.

Subd. 5. [ADVISORY COMMITTEES.] The commission may appoint advisory committees to assist it as needed. Each advisory committee must be chaired by a member of the commission. Advisory committees shall meet at the discretion of the committee chairperson.

Subd. 6. [ASSISTANCE FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCIES.] When in the performance of its duties the commission requests information or assistance from any state or metropolitan agency or officer, the agency or officer shall promptly furnish the information or assistance requested.

Subd. 7. [STAFF.] The commission may employ professional, technical, consulting, and clerical services. The commission may use the services of existing legislative staff offices.

Subd. 8. [EXPENSES AND REIMBURSEMENT.] The members of the commission and its staff and assistants must be reimbursed for all expenses actually incurred in the performance of their duties, in the same manner as the expenses of legislators and legislative employees are paid. Expenses of the commission must be approved by the chair and paid in the same manner as other state expenses are paid.

Subd. 9. [REPORTS BY METROPOLITAN AGENCIES.] Each agency of government established by or pursuant to chapter 473 shall submit to the commission a copy of its annual report, annual budget and work plan, proposals to issue debt, prospectuses, draft and final plans and development programs, and studies, reports, or other formal work products. The commission shall keep a complete file for inspection by legislators and legislative staff of the materials submitted pursuant to this section.

Sec. 2. [LIMITATION.]

For the biennium ending June 30, 1985, members shall be compensated in the same manner as for other legislative service, and staff and administrative support for the commission shall be provided by existing legislative service offices."

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Schmitz from the Committee on Local and Urban Government, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1438: A bill for an act relating to local government; providing for the duties and bonds of city clerks; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 412.151; and 418.25, subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 17, delete "*financial and*"

Page 2, line 18, before "*made*" insert "*who by ordinance is*"

Page 2, line 19, delete "*financial and*"

Page 2, line 20, delete "*their*" and insert "*the*"

Page 2, line 20, before the period insert "*of his or her duties*"

Page 2, line 22, before "*bond*" insert "*official*"

Page 2, line 24, delete "*by the state*" and insert "*in accordance with the minimum procedures*"

Page 2, delete line 25

Page 2, line 26, after the period insert "*A copy of the ordinance shall be provided to the state auditor.*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred under Rule 35, together with the committee report thereon,

S.F. No. 1421: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; providing for rulemaking authority for the Community Social Services Act; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 256E.05, subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the report from the

Committee on Health and Human Services, shown in the Journal for March 12, 1984, be amended to read:

“the bill be amended and when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance”. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred under Rule 35, together with the committee report thereon,

S.F. No. 939: A resolution memorializing the President and the Congress of the United States to repeal the Federal Reserve Act.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the report from the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce, shown in the Journal for March 12, 1984, be amended to read:

“the resolution be amended and when so amended the resolution do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration”. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which were referred for proper reference under Rule 35:

S.F. Nos. 1813, 1690, 1682, 1347, 1713, 1479, 1719, 1611, 1296, 1277, 1842, 1660, 1737, 1485, 1534, 1729 and 1545 reports the same back with the recommendation that the bills be re-referred as follows:

S.F. Nos. 1813 and 1690 to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce.

S.F. Nos. 1682 and 1347 to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

S.F. Nos. 1713 and 1479 to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

S.F. Nos. 1719, 1611 and 1296 to the Committee on Judiciary.

S.F. Nos. 1277, 1842 and 1660 to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

S.F. Nos. 1737 and 1485 to the Committee on Public Utilities and State Regulated Industries.

S.F. Nos. 1534, 1729 and 1545 to the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation.

Report adopted.

Mr. Pehler from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1701: A bill for an act relating to vocational-technical education; permitting South Dakota residents to attend Minnesota postsecondary vocational-technical schools at Minnesota resident tuition rates; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 124.565, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 12, before “A” insert “*Unless a reciprocity agreement relat-*

ing to postsecondary vocational-technical schools is entered into by August 1, 1984, and approved by the state board of vocational technical education."

Page 1, delete lines 17 and 18

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 5, before the semicolon, insert "unless a reciprocity agreement is entered into by August 1, 1984"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Pehler from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1369: A bill for an act relating to education; allowing financial aid after the time normally required to complete a bachelor's degree; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 136A.121, subdivision 10.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, delete lines 10 to 18, and insert:

"Subd. 10. Each A scholarship or grant-in-aid shall be awarded for one academic year but shall be renewable for a maximum of six semesters or nine quarters or their equivalent but may not continue after the recipient has obtained a baccalaureate degree or been enrolled full-time or the equivalent for the number of semesters or quarters normally required to complete a baccalaureate degree, whichever occurs first may be awarded for an academic year, semester, or quarter according to student need. It may be renewed by academic year, semester, or quarter. No individual may receive financial aid under this section for more than four academic years, eight semesters, or 12 quarters. No scholarship or grant-in-aid may be awarded to a student who has obtained a baccalaureate degree."

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, delete lines 2 and 3 and insert "relating to education; authorizing up to four years of financial aid for students who have not earned a bachelor's"

Page 1, line 4, after "degree;" insert "counting aid by year, semester, or quarter;"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Pehler from the Committee on Education, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1332: A bill for an act relating to Independent School District No. 196; authorizing it to establish and operate a nonprofit corporation for the benefit of students; requiring local approval.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 123.35, is amended by

adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 16. [FUNDS FOR NONPROFIT CORPORATION.] The board may expend district funds to establish and operate, either separately or cooperatively, one nonprofit corporation. The purpose of the corporation shall be to assist the school board, employees, pupils, parents, and the community in providing educational and related opportunities for the benefit of the pupils. The board of directors shall conduct the affairs of the corporation in cooperation with the school board. Members of a school board may serve as directors of the corporation. Any public educational regional organization or institution may assist a school board or the corporation if requested to do so. Each year for two years the school board may expend for the corporation, for purposes of this subdivision, an amount not to exceed \$4 times the actual number of pupils in the district for that school year.

Sec. 2. [REPORT TO THE COMMISSIONER AND LEGISLATURE.]

By November 1, 1985, a school board exercising any authority granted under section 1 or planning to exercise such authority shall report to the state board of education and to the commissioner of education. In conjunction with this reporting, the commissioner may conduct an informational workshop for some or all districts. By January 1, 1986, the commissioner of education shall report to the education committees of the legislature about the activities and experiences of the districts."

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing a school board to expend district funds to establish and operate a nonprofit corporation; requiring the corporation to assist and cooperate with the school board; providing certain limitations on the amount of district funds; requiring district reports to the commissioner of education; requiring a report to the legislature; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 123.35, by adding a subdivision."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Johnson, D.J. from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1411: A bill for an act relating to taxes; clarifying the consequences of certain conveyances of tax-forfeited land; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 282.01, subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 5, after line 15, insert:

"Sec. 2. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

Section 1 is effective the day following final enactment."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Johnson, D.J. from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which

was referred

S.F. No. 1344: A bill for an act relating to local government; providing for supplemental local government aid payments to certain cities and towns; appropriating money.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 7, after "1." insert "[SUPPLEMENTAL LOCAL AID.]" and begin a new paragraph with "For"

Page 1, line 10, after "between" insert "(a)"

Page 1, line 12, after "1," insert "and Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 477A.014, subdivision 3," and after "and" insert "(b)"

Page 1, line 15, after "2." insert "[TIME OF PAYMENTS.]" and begin a new paragraph with "Aid"

Page 1, line 20, after "1," insert "and" and delete "may"

Page 1, line 21, delete "not exceed" and insert "to it pursuant to this act exceeds"

Page 1, line 23, delete ". Any amounts determined"

Page 1, delete lines 24 and 25

Page 2, line 1, delete "1985, and" and insert ", the amount of that excess distribution shall be"

Page 2, line 3, after "3." insert "[SUBSEQUENT YEARS.]" and begin a new paragraph with "For"

Page 2, line 11, after "4." insert "[APPROPRIATION.]" and begin a new paragraph with "An"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1243: A resolution memorializing the President and Congress to establish a National Academy of Peace and Conflict Resolution.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the resolution do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1328: A bill for an act relating to state monuments; adding the "Monument to the Living" in Ramsey County to the list of state monuments; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 138.585, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended

as follows:

Page 1, line 12, delete "*momento*" and insert "*memento*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1431: A bill for an act relating to the military; modifying the qualifications of the adjutant general; changing the appointment of assistant adjutant generals; mandating termination of an officer's commission when federal recognition is withdrawn; expanding the power of the adjutant general to sell an armory; and expanding the use of the proceeds from the sale of an armory; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 190.07; 190.08, subdivisions 1, 3, and 4; 190.09; 192.18, subdivision 1; and 193.36, subdivision 2; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 192A.345, subdivisions 1 and 3.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, delete "adjutant generals" and insert "adjutants general"

Page 1, line 11, delete "; repealing Minnesota" and insert a period

Page 1, delete line 12

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1466: A bill for an act relating to veterans; changing the eligibility for veteran's preference for civil service employment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 43A.11, subdivision 1.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 15, strike everything after "to"

Page 1, lines 16 to 18, strike the old language and delete the new language

Page 1, line 19, strike everything before the period and insert "*a veteran as defined in section 197.447*"

Page 1, after line 19, insert:

"Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 197.447, is amended to read:

197.447 [VETERAN, DEFINED.]

The word "veteran" as used in sections 43A.11, 196.02, 196.07, 197.59, 197.601, and 282.038 means any person who has been separated under honorable conditions from any branch of the armed forces of the United States

after having served on active duty for 181 consecutive days or by reason of disability incurred while serving on active duty, and who is a citizen of the United States.”

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 4, delete “section” and insert “sections”

Page 1, line 5, before the period, insert “; and 197.447”

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Ms. Berglin from the Committee on Health and Human Services, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1299: A bill for an act relating to health; directing the commissioner of health and the director of the pollution control agency to study the relationship between hazardous waste contamination of metropolitan water supplies and the incidence of cancer; appropriating money.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

“Section 1. [FEASIBILITY STUDY.]

The commissioner of health shall evaluate the feasibility of conducting epidemiologic studies to assess the health effect of hazardous waste contamination of metropolitan water supplies in St. Louis Park and New Brighton. The commissioner of health shall report to the legislative commission on waste management by January 1, 1986, on whether the studies are feasible. If the report includes a recommendation that a study be conducted in either or both communities, the report shall include a protocol indicating methods and costs of the study.

Sec. 2. [APPROPRIATION.]

The sum of \$93,000 is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of health for purposes of this act and is available until expended.

Sec. 3. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

Sections 1 and 2 are effective the day following final enactment.”

Delete the title and insert:

“A bill for an act relating to health; directing the commissioner of health to assess the feasibility of studies of the health effects of contamination of metropolitan water supplies; appropriating money.”

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Merriam from the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1474: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; expanding the

trout stamp program to include trout lakes and Lake Superior; reducing the age requirement for obtaining a trout stamp; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 97.4842.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 18, reinstate the stricken language, and after "trout" insert "*or salmon*"

Page 2, line 10, after "trout" insert "*and salmon*"

Page 2, line 11, delete "*in trout*"

Page 2, line 12, delete everything before the semicolon

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Merriam from the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1589: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; authorizing hunters and trappers to wear blaze orange camouflage; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 100.29, subdivision 8.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, lines 10 to 16, reinstate the stricken language and delete the new language

Page 1, line 17, reinstate the stricken language

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Merriam from the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1112: A bill for an act relating to drainage; reducing the bond required for appeal of benefits or damages in a drainage assessment proceeding; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 106.631, subdivision 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 21, strike everything after the period

Page 1, strike line 22

Page 1, line 23, strike the old language and delete "\$250"

Page 1, strike lines 24 and 25

Page 2, strike line 1

Page 2, line 2, strike "order of the court."

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 2, delete "reducing" and insert "eliminating"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Merriam from the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, to which was referred

S.F. No. 1590: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; imposing a penalty on the owner or keeper of a dog that kills or harasses a domestic animal; authorizing peace officers to kill dogs endangering big game; prohibiting damages against a peace officer or conservation officer who kills a dog; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 100.29, subdivision 19; and 347.01.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

“Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 100.29, subdivision 19, is amended to read:

Subd. 19. Any person may, and it shall be the duty of every conservation officer to, kill any dog pursuing or killing deer or moose, and no action for damages shall be maintained against the person for the killing. The owner of any dog which is found pursuing or killing deer, moose, or domestic livestock shall be guilty of a petty misdemeanor. A dog that wounds, kills, has killed, or pursues a big game animal may be killed by a peace officer or conservation officer or, between January 1 and July 14, by any person. The officer or person is not liable for damages for killing the dog. The owner of the dog is guilty of a petty misdemeanor and is subject to a civil penalty of up to \$1,000 for each violation.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 347.01, is amended to read:

347.01 [OWNER'S LIABILITY.]

Owners or keepers of any A person who owns or keeps a dog or dogs, that kill, wound kills, wounds, or worry any harasses a domestic animal or animals, shall be is jointly and severally liable to the owner of such the animal or animals for all the damages done by such the dog or dogs, without proving notice to or knowledge by any such. The owner of the domestic animal does not have to prove that the owner or keeper of such the dog or dogs, had knowledge or notice that any or either of them the dog was mischievous or disposed to kill or worry any harass a domestic animal. The owner of any dog that kills or pursues domestic livestock is guilty of a petty misdemeanor.”

Delete the title and insert:

“A bill for an act relating to natural resources; increasing the penalty on owners and keepers of certain dogs; authorizing peace officers to take certain actions; prohibiting damages against peace officers who take those actions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 100.29, subdivision 19; and 347.01.”

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, D.M. from the Committee on Governmental Operations, to

which was referred the following appointment as reported in the Journal for March 12, 1984:

**STATE PLANNING AGENCY
DIRECTOR
Thomas J. Triplett**

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointment be confirmed.

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Lessard from the Committee on Veterans and General Legislation, to which was referred the following appointment as reported in the Journal for March 8, 1984:

**DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS' AFFAIRS
COMMISSIONER
William J. Gregg**

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the appointment be confirmed.

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the foregoing committee report be laid on the table. The motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

S.F. Nos. 1520, 1446, 1438, 1332, 1411, 1344, 1328, 1431, 1466, 1474, 1589, 1112 and 1590 were read the second time.

MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Merriam moved that his name be stricken as a co-author to S.F. No. 773. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Willet moved that his name be stricken as chief author, shown as a co-author and the name of Mr. Dahl be added as chief author to S.F. No. 773. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Frank moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1127. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Kroening moved that the names of Messrs. Ulland, Lessard and Benson be added as co-authors to S.F. No. 1242. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Belanger moved that the names of Messrs. Laidig and Lessard be added as co-authors to S.F. No. 1328. The motion prevailed.

Mrs. Kronebusch moved that the name of Mr. Benson be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1381. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chmielewski moved that the name of Mr. Renneke be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1389. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram moved that the name of Mr. Renneke be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1424. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram moved that the name of Mr. Renneke be added as a co-author

to S.F. No. 1427. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Peterson, C.C. moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1434. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the name of Mr. Belanger be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1449. The motion prevailed.

Mr. DeCramer moved that the name of Mr. Wegscheid be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1451. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stumpf moved that the name of Mr. Wegscheid be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1457. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Lessard moved that the name of Mr. Renneke be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1466. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Merriam moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1542. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Wegscheid moved that the name of Mr. Renneke be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1557. The motion prevailed.

Mrs. Adkins moved that the name of Mr. Chmielewski be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1580. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Merriam moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1589. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Merriam moved that the name of Mr. DeCramer be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1590. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram moved that the name of Mr. Renneke be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1595. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Frank moved that the name of Mr. Pehler be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1596. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Berglin moved that the names of Messrs. Benson and Anderson be added as co-authors to S.F. No. 1600. The motion prevailed.

Ms. Olson moved that the name of Mr. Merriam be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1719. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Merriam moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1723. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Merriam moved that the names of Messrs. Storm, DeCramer and Novak be added as co-authors to S.F. No. 1725. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Schmitz moved that the name of Mr. DeCramer be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1840. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Benson moved that the name of Mr. Anderson be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1873. The motion prevailed.

Mrs. Lantry moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1874. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Purfeerst moved that the name of Mr. Frederick be added as a co-author to S.F. No. 1877. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Wegscheid moved that the name of Mr. Mehrkens be added as a co-

author to S.F. No. 1918. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Petty moved that S.F. No. 1914 be withdrawn from the Committee on Transportation and re-referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Samuelson moved that S.F. No. 1917 be withdrawn from the Committee on Rules and Administration and re-referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce. The motion prevailed.

CALENDAR

S.F. No. 311: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; requiring licensure for adult day care facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 245.782, subdivisions 2, 5, and by adding a subdivision; 245.783, by adding a subdivision; 245.791; 245.802, by adding a subdivision.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 57 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Belanger	Frederickson	Langseth	Peterson, C.C.	Solon
Benson	Freeman	Lantry	Peterson, D.C.	Spear
Berg	Hughes	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Storm
Berglin	Isackson	McQuaid	Petty	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Johnson, D.E.	Mehrkens	Pogemiller	Taylor
Bertram	Johnson, D.J.	Merriam	Purfeerst	Ulland
Brataas	Jude	Moe, D. M.	Ramstad	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Kamrath	Moe, R. D.	Reichgott	Wegscheid
Dahl	Knaak	Nelson	Renneke	Willet
Davis	Kroening	Novak	Samuelson	
DeCramer	Kronebusch	Olson	Schmitz	
Diessner	Laidig	Pehler	Sieloff	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S.F. No. 1455: A bill for an act relating to health; exempting schools from license fee requirements of the department of health; exempting certain places of lodging from licensing requirements of the department; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 157.03 and 157.14.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 57 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Belanger	Frederickson	Langseth	Peterson, C.C.	Solon
Benson	Freeman	Lantry	Peterson, D.C.	Spear
Berg	Hughes	Luther	Peterson, R.W.	Storm
Berglin	Isackson	McQuaid	Petty	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Johnson, D.E.	Mehrkens	Pogemiller	Taylor
Bertram	Johnson, D.J.	Merriam	Purfeerst	Ulland
Brataas	Jude	Moe, D. M.	Ramstad	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Kamrath	Moe, R. D.	Reichgott	Wegscheid
Dahl	Knaak	Nelson	Renneke	Willet
Davis	Kroening	Novak	Samuelson	
DeCramer	Kronebusch	Olson	Schmitz	
Diessner	Laidig	Pehler	Sieloff	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S.F. No. 1418: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; authorizing the alcohol and drug abuse section of the department of public welfare to collect certain information; establishing an American Indian advisory council relating to chemical dependency policies; clarifying the evaluation functions of the commissioner of public welfare with respect to chemical dependency policies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 254A.03; 254A.05, subdivision 1; 254A.07; 254A.16, subdivisions 1 and 2; and proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 254A.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 55 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Belanger	Diessner	Kronebusch	Novak	Renneke
Benson	Frederickson	Laidig	Olson	Samuelson
Berg	Freeman	Langseth	Pehler	Schmitz
Berglin	Hughes	Lantry	Peterson, C.C.	Sieloff
Bernhagen	Isackson	Luther	Peterson, D.C.	Spear
Bertram	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Peterson, R.W.	Stumpf
Brataas	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkens	Petty	Taylor
Chmielewski	Jude	Merriam	Pogemiller	Ulland
Dahl	Kamrath	Moe, D. M.	Purfeerst	Waldorf
Davis	Knaak	Moe, R. D.	Ramstad	Wegscheid
DeCramer	Kroening	Nelson	Reichgott	Willet

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S.F. No. 1454: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; authorizing the commissioner to enter into interstate adoption compacts; establishing procedures for interstate assistance payments; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 256B.06, subdivision 1; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 259.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 54 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Belanger	Frederickson	Laidig	Olson	Samuelson
Benson	Freeman	Langseth	Pehler	Schmitz
Berg	Hughes	Lantry	Peterson, C.C.	Sieloff
Berglin	Isackson	Luther	Peterson, D.C.	Spear
Bernhagen	Johnson, D.E.	McQuaid	Peterson, R.W.	Stumpf
Bertram	Johnson, D.J.	Mehrkens	Petty	Taylor
Brataas	Jude	Merriam	Pogemiller	Ulland
Dahl	Kamrath	Moe, D. M.	Purfeerst	Waldorf
Davis	Knaak	Moe, R. D.	Ramstad	Wegscheid
DeCramer	Kroening	Nelson	Reichgott	Willet
Diessner	Kronebusch	Novak	Renneke	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

GENERAL ORDERS

The Senate resolved itself into a Committee of the Whole, with Mr.

Hughes in the chair.

After some time spent therein, the committee arose; and Mr. Hughes reported that the committee had considered the following:

S.F. Nos. 1396, 868, 1349, 1475, 1563, 1476 and 1235, which the committee recommends to pass.

S.F. No. 1453, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Diessner:

Page 2, line 16, delete “, unless” and insert “. If”

Page 2, line 17, after “facility” insert “, paragraph (a) applies”

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

On motion of Mr. Moe, R.D., the report of the Committee of the Whole, as kept by the Secretary, was adopted.

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Mrs. McQuaid, Messrs. Ramstad and Peterson, R.W. introduced—

S.F. No. 1923: A bill for an act relating to criminal justice; permitting misdemeanor arrests to be made at night in public places; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 629.31.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Johnson, D.J. and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1924: A bill for an act relating to public health; exempting increases of less than five swing beds from certificate of need review; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 145.833, subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 1925: A bill for an act relating to education; establishing a program to require school districts to provide milk to all elementary and secondary pupils in public and nonpublic schools; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 124.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1926: A bill for an act relating to school districts; changing the qualifying percentage of agricultural valuation for minimum aid from 60 to 55; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 124.2126, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Solon and Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1927: A bill for an act relating to St. Louis County; establishing positions in the unclassified civil service; amending Laws 1941, chapter 423, section 6, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. Hughes, Nelson, Pehler, Dahl and Taylor introduced—

S.F. No. 1928: A bill for an act relating to education; lengthening membership on the higher education coordinating board to six-year terms; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 136A.02, subdivision 1a.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1929: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; increasing the personal needs allowance for residents of certain facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 256B.35, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mrs. Lantry introduced—

S.F. No. 1930: A bill for an act relating to Ramsey county; providing for the creation, organization, powers and duties of a personnel system; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 383A.41, subdivision 5; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 383A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 383A.29; 383A.30; 383A.31; and Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 383A.28.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Mrs. Lantry and Mr. Waldorf introduced—

S.F. No. 1931: A bill for an act relating to the city of St. Paul; permitting the city to adopt certain regulations for smoke detection devices.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. Freeman and Belanger introduced—

S.F. No. 1932: A bill for an act relating to local government; providing for exemption from taxation on certain lands for which conveyance is authorized by the metropolitan sports facilities commission to the city of Bloomington.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Jude introduced—

S.F. No. 1933: A bill for an act relating to drivers licenses; requiring certain notice on uniform traffic ticket; providing penalty for failure to respond to summons and complaint on uniform traffic ticket; prohibiting issuance of warrants on persons failing to pay fines for parking violations; establishing system for collecting unpaid fines; allocating driver's license reinstatement fees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 169.99, by adding a sub-

division; 171.16, subdivision 3, and by adding subdivisions; 171.20, subdivision 1; and 171.29, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Pogemiller; Moe, R.D. and Langseth introduced—

S.F. No. 1934: A bill for an act relating to enterprise zones; expanding the definition of areas eligible for designation as zones; limiting the designation of border city enterprise zones; clarifying the tax incentives available in enterprise zones; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 273.1312, subdivisions 4 and 5; 273.1313, subdivisions 1 and 2; 273.1314, subdivisions 1, 6, 8, 9, 10, and by adding subdivisions.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Samuelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1935: A resolution memorializing the President, Congress, and the United States Department of Agriculture to take speedy action to insure that frozen pizzas are wholesome, nutritious, flavorful, truthfully labeled, and entirely healthful by approving proposed standards for real cheese content on frozen meat pizzas and affirming that all meat on frozen pizzas should be cooked.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Pogemiller and Moe, D.M. introduced—

S.F. No. 1936: A bill for an act relating to state departments and agencies; changing the composition and powers of the board of private detective and protective agent services; changing requirements for obtaining a license; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 326.33; 326.331; 326.332, subdivision 1; and 326.333; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 299C.01, subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Dieterich, Knaak, Nelson, Taylor and Hughes introduced—

S.F. No. 1937: A bill for an act relating to education; providing for employment rights in certain school district supervisory and administrative positions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 125.12, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education. Mr. Chmielewski questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Samuelson; Merriam; Willet and Bernhagen introduced—

S.F. No. 1938: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; authorizing the airtight packaging of smoked fish; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 31.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Samuelson; Merriam; Willet and Bernhagen introduced—

S.F. No. 1939: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; exempting certain persons from rules governing processing, labeling, distribution, and handling of certain smoked fish; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 31.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Dieterich, Frank, DeCramer and Storm introduced—

S.F. No. 1940: A bill for an act relating to alcoholic beverages; allowing licensed premises to remain open after the hour sales of alcoholic beverages must cease; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 340.14, subdivision 5; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 340.034, subdivision 1; and 340.14, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Public Utilities and State Regulated Industries.

Mr. Schmitz introduced—

S.F. No. 1941: A bill for an act relating to snowmobiles; requiring liability insurance coverage; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 84.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce.

Messrs. Hughes, Nelson, Ms. Peterson, D.C. and Mr. Dahl introduced—

S.F. No. 1942: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing the establishment of education districts; requiring the appointment of an advisory council; requiring state board approval of agreements of education districts; authorizing aid; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 124.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Diessner and Laidig introduced—

S.F. No. 1943: A bill for an act relating to the city of Oakdale; providing a permanent increase in the levy limit base.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Waldorf introduced—

S.F. No. 1944: A bill for an act relating to education; adding two outstate members to the Minnesota higher education facilities authority; creating an advisory position on the authority; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 136A.26.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 1945: A bill for an act relating to insurance; requiring health maintenance organizations to provide coverage for services within the scope of the license of a dentist or podiatrist; requiring employers to offer alternative prepaid health plan coverage to employees; authorizing any licensed dentist to participate in certain prepaid dental plans; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 62A.043.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1946: A bill for an act relating to gambling; creating a charitable gambling control board and prescribing its powers and duties; imposing a tax on the gross receipts of charitable gambling; making an annual appropriation; prescribing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 349.11; 349.12; 349.13; 349.14; 349.15; 349.16; 349.17; 349.18; 349.19; 349.20; 349.21; 349.22; and 349.31, subdivision 1; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 340.14, subdivision 2; 609.75, subdivision 3; and 609.761; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 349; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 349.26.

Referred to the Committee on Public Utilities and State Regulated Industries.

Mr. Taylor introduced—

S.F. No. 1947: A bill for an act relating to retirement; Mankato firefighters employee contributions; amending Laws 1971, chapter 407, section 1, subdivision 1, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mr. Taylor introduced—

S.F. No. 1948: A bill for an act relating to taxation; sales; exempting sales by certain organizations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 297A.25, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Davis introduced—

S.F. No. 1949: A bill for an act relating to taxation; repealing the aggregate tax for Benton county; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 298.75, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Frederick and Moe, D.M. introduced—

S.F. No. 1950: A bill for an act relating to retirement; Owatonna city hospital employees refunds or deferred annuities.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Knaak, Schmitz, Solon and DeCramer introduced—

S.F. No. 1951: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; changing the authority for licensing and inspecting vending machines; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 145.031, subdivision 1; 145.55, subdivision 1; 145.918, subdivision 2; 366.01, subdivision 2; and Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 28A.09, subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 144.075; 375.193; and 461.02.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. Purfeerst, Lessard and Frank introduced—

S.F. No. 1952: A bill for an act relating to horse racing; providing for the distribution of proceeds from the Minnesota Breeders Fund; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 240.18.

Referred to the Committee on Public Utilities and State Regulated Industries.

Messrs. Frederick and Purfeerst introduced—

S.F. No. 1953: A bill for an act relating to commerce; defining the scope of state and local regulation of transient merchants; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 329.15.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce.

Mr. Hughes, Ms. Peterson, D.C.; Messrs. Willet; Johnson, D.E. and Frederickson introduced—

S.F. No. 1954: A bill for an act relating to elections; making procedural changes; correcting erroneous and obsolete provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 200.02, subdivision 7; 201.021; 201.061, subdivision 2; 203B.04, subdivision 4; 203B.06, subdivision 4; 204B.27, subdivisions 2 and 3; 204B.28, subdivision 2; 204B.29, subdivision 1; 204C.27; and 208.04; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 203B.12, subdivision 2; 204B.36, subdivision 2; 204C.10, subdivision 1; 204C.32, subdivision 2; and 204D.11, subdivisions 1 and 5; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 201.018, subdivision 1; 204C.11; and 204C.30, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Ethics.

Messrs. Belanger; Peterson, D.L.; Kamrath and Johnson, D.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 1955: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing for early termination of the surtax on individual income tax; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 290.06, subdivision 2e; repealing Laws 1983, chapter 342, article 1, section 8.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Benson introduced—

S.F. No. 1956: A bill for an act relating to licenses; regulating athlete agencies; providing penalties; proposing new law coded as Minnesota Stat-

utes, chapter 342.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce.

Ms. Reichgott, Messrs. Belanger, Dahl, Freeman and Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 1957: A bill for an act relating to commerce; regulating going out of business sales and certain other sales; establishing licensing and bonding requirements; prescribing a penalty; providing a remedy; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 325G.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce.

Mr. Johnson, D.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 1958: A bill for an act relating to appropriations; appropriating money to the soil and water conservation board for soil conservation cost sharing and public assistance; increasing the complement of the board.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Berg and Johnson, D.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 1959: A bill for an act relating to school districts; reducing the basic maintenance mill rate; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 124.2122, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Reichgott, Messrs. Vega; Moe, D.M. and Ms. Peterson, D.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1960: A bill for an act relating to energy and economic development; energy and economic development authority; adding definitions; clarifying duties and powers of the energy and economic development authority; correcting statutory references; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 116J.36, subdivisions 3, 4, 6, 8, and by adding a subdivision; 116J.88, as amended; 116J.89, subdivision 4; 116J.90, by adding a subdivision; 116J.91, subdivisions 15, 17, 18, and by adding subdivisions; 474.01, subdivisions 7 and 7a; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 116J.89, subdivisions 1, 1a, 1b, 1c, 2, 6, and 8; 116J.90, subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6; 116J.91, subdivisions 1, 4, 11, 12, 16, 19, and 20; 116J.923, subdivision 7; 116J.924, subdivision 3; 116J.925, subdivisions 1 and 3; 275.125, subdivision 12a; Laws 1983, chapter 323, section 5, subdivision 2; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 116L; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 116J.922; 116J.923, subdivisions 2 and 12; and 116J.924, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Mr. Renneke introduced—

S.F. No. 1961: A bill for an act relating to hazardous waste management; requiring a report to the legislature on compensation for damage resulting from the site selection process for commercial disposal facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 115A.08, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Bertram, Stumpf, Willet, Isackson and Wegscheid introduced—

S.F. No. 1962: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; changing certain duties of the commissioner; changing certain reporting requirements concerning agricultural land ownership; exempting the family farm security program from certain loan commitment approval requirements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 21.118; 500.221, subdivision 2a; 500.24, subdivision 4; and Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 16A.80, subdivision 2; and 500.221, subdivision 4.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Wegscheid introduced—

S.F. No. 1963: A bill for an act relating to financial institutions; credit unions; authorizing the board of directors to establish certain interest rates; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 52.14, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce.

Mr. Jude introduced—

S.F. No. 1964: A bill for an act relating to health; providing guidelines for supportive care; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 144.651, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Peterson, R. W. and Ms. Reichgott introduced—

S.F. No. 1965: A bill for an act relating to civil actions; requiring agreements for loans of money, repayment of money, or extensions of credit to be in writing; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 513.01.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Willet, Berg, Davis and Peterson, C.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1966: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; exempting hunters on private shooting preserves from the requirement of a pheasant stamp; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 97.4843, subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. DeCramer introduced—

S.F. No. 1967: A bill for an act relating to transportation; authorizing the expenditure of county turnback account funds and state transportation bond funds for bridges ten feet or more in length following replacement; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 174.50, subdivision 7; and Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 161.082, subdivision 2a.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Mr. Purfeerst introduced—

S.F. No. 1968: A bill for an act relating to motor vehicles; prohibiting fees for the return of number plates; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 168.15.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Johnson, D.J.; Moe, R.D.; Peterson, C.C. and Novak introduced—

S.F. No. 1969: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income; eliminating the income tax surtax; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 290.06, subdivision 2e; repealing Laws 1983, chapter 342, article 1, section 8.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Moe, R.D. introduced—

S.F. No. 1970: A bill for an act relating to education; allowing the higher education coordinating board to prorate the obligation to repay loans for doctors who serve part time in an area of need; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 147.30.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Solon introduced—

S.F. No. 1971: A bill for an act relating to waste management; creating a waste railroad tie cleanup fund; imposing a tax; granting rulemaking authority; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 115A.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Sieloff and Knaak introduced—

S.F. No. 1972: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing a sales tax exemption for sales by certain nonprofit organizations; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 297A.25, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Jude introduced—

S.F. No. 1973: A bill for an act relating to persons handicapped in communication; requiring the arresting officer to immediately obtain a qualified interpreter for a person handicapped in communication who has been arrested; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 611.32.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Peterson, R.W. introduced—

S.F. No. 1974: A bill for an act relating to commerce; clarifying the limitations on enforcement of indemnification agreements in construction con-

tracts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 337.01, subdivisions 2, 3, and 4; 337.02; 337.03; and 337.05, subdivision 2, and by adding subdivisions; and Laws 1983, chapter 333, section 6; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 337.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Moe, R.D.; Solon; Moe, D.M. and Kroening introduced—

S.F. No. 1975: A bill for an act relating to corporations; regulating corporate take-overs; requiring certain disclosures; providing certain limitations on offerors; prescribing suspension powers of the commissioner; providing a hearing; regulating control share acquisitions of Minnesota business corporations; defining terms; prescribing penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 80B.01; 80B.03, subdivisions 1, 2, and 5, and by adding subdivisions; 80B.05; 80B.06; 80B.07; 80B.08; 80B.10; 302A.011, by adding subdivisions; 302A.449, by adding a subdivision; 302A.461, subdivision 4; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 302A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 80B.02; 80B.03, subdivisions 3 and 4; and 80B.12, subdivisions 1 and 3.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce. Mr. Chmielewski questioned the reference thereon and, under Rule 35, the bill was referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Novak introduced—

S.F. No. 1976: A bill for an act relating to regulated industries; changing conditions that regulate the telecast of games at metropolitan sports facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 473.568, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Messrs. Novak, Luther, Solon and Freeman introduced—

S.F. No. 1977: A bill for an act relating to economic development; clarifying provisions relating to the export finance authority; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 17.104, by adding a subdivision; and 17.105, subdivisions 1, 3, 4, and 7.

Referred to the Committee on Economic Development and Commerce.

Messrs. Purfeerst, Schmitz, Storm, Ms. Reichgott and Mr. Wegscheid introduced—

S.F. No. 1978: A bill for an act relating to the metropolitan airports commission; defining its relationship to the legislature and the metropolitan council; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 473; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 473.611, subdivision 5; and 473.621, subdivision 6.

Referred to the Committee on Local and Urban Government.

Mr. Wegscheid introduced—

S.F. No. 1979: A resolution memorializing the President and Congress of

the United States to adopt legislation requiring that all milk sold in the United States contain a higher minimum level of nonfat milk solids.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Langseth, Stumpf and Moe, R.D. introduced—

S.F. No. 1980: A bill for an act relating to corrections; providing for costs of transporting convicted persons and children adjudicated delinquent to correctional facilities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 243.17, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Mr. Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1981: A bill for an act relating to local government; appropriating money for upgrading access road to new elementary school.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Pogemiller and Moe, D.M. introduced—

S.F. No. 1982: A bill for an act relating to the governor; transferring the authority to make certain appointments to various commissioners; providing for filling a membership vacancy on a board reoccurring within three months after the vacancy has been filled; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 1.35; 15.0575, by adding a subdivision; 16.71, subdivision 1; 16.823, subdivision 2; 35.02, subdivision 1; 116E.02, subdivision 2; 121.934, subdivision 1; 182.656, subdivision 1; and 326.33, subdivision 1; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 16.911, subdivision 1; 40.03, subdivision 1; 116C.82, subdivision 2; 116E.02, subdivision 1; 250.05, subdivision 2; and 299B.05, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1983: A bill for an act relating to economic security; clarifying the emergency employment development jobs program; regulating the payment of cash allowances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 256D.111, subdivision 2; 256D.112; 268.80; and 268.81.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Hughes, Nelson, Taylor, Pehler and Ms. Peterson, D.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1984: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing an equalized aid and levy for early childhood and family education programs; establishing certain requirements for early childhood and family education programs; authorizing certain aid for certain early childhood and family education programs; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 275.125, by adding a subdivision; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 124.271, subdivision 2b; 125.032, subdivision 2; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 121 and 124; repealing Min-

nesota Statutes 1982, sections 129B.06; 129B.07; 129B.08; and 129B.09, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1985: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; revising procedures for determining operating cost payment rates for nursing homes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1982, section 144.072; Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, sections 144A.31, subdivision 4; 256B.421, subdivision 2; 256B.431, subdivisions 1, 2, 4, 5, and by adding a subdivision; 256B.50; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, chapter 144.

Referred to the Committee on Health and Human Services.

Messrs. Nelson; Moe, D.M.; Pehler and Johnson, D.E. introduced—

S.F. No. 1986: A bill for an act relating to public employment labor relations; recodifying the public employment labor relations act; proposing new law coded as Minnesota Statutes, chapter 179A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1982, sections 179.61 to 179.76, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mr. Kroening introduced—

S.F. No. 1987: A bill for an act relating to public employment; regulating grievances of disciplinary actions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1983 Supplement, section 179.70, subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 12:00 noon, Wednesday, March 21, 1984. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate